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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good morning, and

          3  welcome to today's Finance Committee hearing. My

          4  name is David Weprin and I Chair the Committee.

          5                 Today we will be considering one

          6  piece of legislation, Intro. 637. This legislation

          7  would codify two of the Department of Finance's

          8  existing Commercial Collections Programs in the

          9  Administrative Code.

         10                 Currently, the Department of Finance

         11  administers several programs to assist commercial

         12  vehicle owners to keep track of and resolve their

         13  New York City parking violations.

         14                 These programs, which have been in

         15  place since July 2004, include the Fleet Program and

         16  NYC Delivery Solutions, the "Stipulated Fine

         17  Program."

         18                 The Fleet Program helps commercial

         19  delivery firms organize and keep track of their

         20  parking tickets. Companies receive weekly reports

         21  listing tickets issued to enrolled license plates

         22  and are then given a penalty-free period to address

         23  those tickets.

         24                 NYC Delivery Solutions: the

         25  Stipulated Fine Program allows participants in the
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          2  Fleet Program to waive the right to contest parking

          3  tickets and, instead, pay reduced parking fines

          4  through NYC Delivery Solutions: The Stipulated Fine

          5  Program. Participating companies are required to

          6  make good-faith efforts to comply with New York City

          7  Traffic Rules and waive their right to contest

          8  parking tickets. Each parking violation is

          9  designated as amenable, partially amenable, or

         10  non-amenable based on the severity of the parking

         11  infraction and State law. The type of violation

         12  determines whether the ticket will be dismissed or

         13  reduced.

         14                 Currently, there is no fee to

         15  participate in any of these programs and the

         16  response to these programs has been uniformly

         17  favorable. Currently these programs have over 500

         18  small and large business participants.

         19                 These programs benefit both

         20  businesses and the City. Companies save money on

         21  their parking tickets, save time and resources by

         22  avoiding timely hearings at the Parking Violations

         23  Bureau, (PVB), and benefit from the accounting

         24  function that the DOF provides to businesses. City

         25  benefits include a reduction in the docket size of
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          2  hearing officers at the PVB and a reduction in the

          3  cost of processing tickets overall.

          4                 Before we begin today's hearing, I

          5  would like to applaud my colleague, Council Member

          6  Yassky, in his efforts on introducing this

          7  legislation to make these programs a permanent

          8  option and for bringing this issue to the attention

          9  of the Council.

         10                 We will now hear from DOF

         11  Commissioner Martha Stark on these programs, but

         12  before she begins I would like to thank her for

         13  coming before us today to testify on this

         14  legislation.

         15                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Good morning,

         16  Chairman Weprin, Council Member Yassky and other

         17  members of the Finance Committee. As you know, I am

         18  Martha E. Stark, New York City's Finance

         19  Commissioner. Thank you for inviting me to testify

         20  today about Intro. 637, Council Member Yassky's bill

         21  that would codify into local law Finance's

         22  commercial parking ticket settlement programs. We

         23  support this bill.

         24                 I want to do three things. First,

         25  explain why we created these programs. Second,
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          2  describe how the programs work. And third, I'll

          3  discuss how we were able to reduce administrative

          4  costs for the various companies that deliver goods

          5  and services to City businesses and residences. We

          6  have also significantly reduced Finance's costs for

          7  adjudicating these tickets as well. Finally, I will

          8  be happy to answer your questions.

          9                 1. Why Finance Created Commercial

         10  Settlement Programs.

         11                 Two years ago, I testified about one

         12  of our commercial settlement programs, NYC Delivery

         13  Solutions, before a joint hearing of the Council

         14  Committees on Transportation and Small Business. For

         15  those of you who were there, this will be a quick

         16  refresher on why we started that program.

         17                 As you know, Finance has a dual role

         18  as it relates to parking violations: We collect

         19  revenue and we provide a forum for people who wish

         20  to challenge a ticket. These roles are completely

         21  separate. While we collected $555 million in parking

         22  fine revenue in the last fiscal year, our role when

         23  adjudicating tickets is not about revenue. The

         24  Adjudication Division's mandate is to provide a fair

         25  and efficient forum for drivers to challenge their
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          2  tickets.

          3                 Needless to say, we get more calls

          4  and letters about parking than anything else,

          5  including from your offices as well as other elected

          6  officials. Challenging a parking ticket should not

          7  be onerous or time-consuming for individuals or for

          8  companies delivering goods and services. But, it

          9  was.

         10                 Thanks to the great leadership of our

         11  Chief Administrative Law Judge and attention to data

         12  about the outcome of hearings, we figured out a way

         13  that we could more efficiently adjudicate these

         14  summonses. For companies delivering goods and

         15  services in New York, there is clear recognition in

         16  the law and traffic rules that under certain

         17  circumstances a company may park in what otherwise

         18  would be a parking violation. However, in order to

         19  grant that privilege, Finance needed to qualify the

         20  companies to ensure that their business model was

         21  consistent with the rules.

         22                 So, we crafted a data-driven

         23  settlement program, to complement one that had been

         24  established prior to my tenure, the Commercial

         25  Abatement Program, that made it more efficient and
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          2  less costly for both businesses and government to

          3  resolve parking tickets, a win-win for both.

          4                 2. How Commercial Settlement Programs

          5  Work.

          6                 Intro. 637 recognizes two discrete

          7  Finance programs: a Fleet Program and a stipulated

          8  fine program.

          9                 Let me give a little background.

         10  Finance has an established Fleet program, which was

         11  created in the early 1980s and is open to any

         12  organization that does business in New York City,

         13  not just delivery business. What those almost 5,000

         14  enrolled entities have in common is that all of them

         15  get parking tickets in the course of doing business.

         16                 In fact, several dozen government

         17  agencies are enrolled in the Fleet program. By

         18  enrolling, the organizations provide Finance with a

         19  list of their license plates; we then compile

         20  regular statements, e-mailed weekly and available

         21  on-line, which track the violations by plate number.

         22  The program creates a streamlined system by which to

         23  pay the fines: businesses no longer have the burden

         24  of relying on drivers telling their employers they

         25  got a ticket, and we at Finance do not have to
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          2  process each individual ticket. We would even be

          3  happy to enroll the City Council's fleet in the

          4  program.

          5                 The second program the bill codifies

          6  is a settlement program of stipulated fines for

          7  delivery vehicles who receive parking violations: of

          8  the two such programs that Finance operates now, one

          9  program is known as the Commercial Abatement Program

         10  and the other is the program you know better, New

         11  York City Delivery Solutions.

         12                 The Commercial Abatement Program is

         13  open to all commercial vehicles that make deliveries

         14  or service calls. The second, New York City Delivery

         15  Solutions is only available to companies whose

         16  business model requires them to expeditiously

         17  deliver goods and services. The Department of

         18  Transportation's traffic rules define expeditious

         19  deliveries as those that take 30 minutes or less.

         20  Under these programs, delivery companies already

         21  enrolled in the Fleet program can join and agree to

         22  pay a settlement amount that reflects the hearing

         23  results data that we continuously monitor and

         24  compile.

         25                 In return for agreeing to pay
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          2  stipulated amounts, they waive their right to

          3  contest all parking tickets that they receive.

          4                 Our settlement programs are not an

          5  attempt to affect ticket issuance, or congestion or

          6  traffic flow. We are simply attempting to provide an

          7  efficient, effective, consistent, less costly and

          8  less burdensome way for businesses to resolve their

          9  tickets.

         10                 We will continue to keep track of the

         11  number of tickets issued to participating companies

         12  by violation type, and we are certainly not trying

         13  to encourage bad parking behavior and the data show

         14  that enrolling in the program has not resulted in an

         15  increase in parking violations written to their

         16  vehicles, and there has been little change in the

         17  percent of no parking, no standing and no stopping

         18  ticket patterns among these companies.

         19                 I am pleased that Intro. 637 vests

         20  authority in the Finance Commissioner to

         21  continuously reevaluate the data to make the process

         22  as efficient as it can be.

         23                 Good morning, Council Member Yassky.

         24                 After over a decade of the Commercial

         25  Abatement Program and four years of New York City
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          2  Delivery Solutions, the results are clear. Companies

          3  are saving time and money. And one firm told us it

          4  has saved over $250,000 annually in ticket broker

          5  fees. And the City has seen significant

          6  administrative savings as well.

          7                 By eliminating a million commercial

          8  hearings per year, we have been able to reallocate

          9  and save a total of about $4.5 million by among

         10  other things devoting more judges to hearing from

         11  every day people.

         12                 This in turn has helped us reduce

         13  wait times in the business centers from an average

         14  of more than two hours to the current average of

         15  about 45 minutes. We've also been able to completely

         16  eliminate a 200,000 ticket backlog in our hearings

         17  by mail unit, reducing the average response time

         18  from four months to less than three weeks.
         19                 The Commercial Abatement Program has

         20  328 enrolled companies and New York City Delivery

         21  Solutions now has 605 firms signed up. I actually I

         22  should thank Ken Thorpe, who is here, and hopefully

         23  will talk to you later. He has been instrumental in

         24  getting his truck companies involved in New York

         25  City Delivery Solutions. So, thank you, Ken, for
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          2  that.

          3                 I testified, so 605 companies now,

          4  when I first testified about New York City Delivery

          5  Solutions just over two years ago, there were only

          6  165 companies enrolled, so we have almost four times

          7  as many companies as when we began.

          8                 As you know, Finance is a team, and

          9  I'm very proud of the team's accomplishments. Let me

         10  introduce them to you, because they're here.

         11                 I'm joined today by Rochelle

         12  Patricof, my First Deputy Commissioner; Mary

         13  Gotsopoulis, our super Chief Administrative Law

         14  Judge; my Chief Counsel, Dara Jaffee is in the back.

         15  And also here is our behind-the-scenes parking

         16  ticket technology guru, Joel Bernstein.

         17                 So, Joel, you should say hello. He's

         18  the guy with the data, and with the program.

         19                 Finally, I really do want to thank

         20  our partners in government at the Department of
         21  Transportation, the New York City Police Department,

         22  the Office of Management and Budget, the Mayor's

         23  Office of Operations. They have certainly provided

         24  valuable feedback to us about how to make the

         25  program the best that it can be. We are extremely
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          2  thankful for their expertise and support.

          3                 I will stop there and answer any

          4  questions that you may have. I do thank you again

          5  for inviting me to testify. And I really do thank

          6  you, Council Member Yassky or Council Member Weprin,

          7  for your incredible leadership in introducing this

          8  bill. Thanks very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         10  Commissioner.

         11                 Let me introduce our colleagues that

         12  have arrived. We have Council Member Vincent

         13  Ignizio, from Staten Island; Council Member Oliver

         14  Koppell, from the Bronx; Council Member Vincent

         15  Gentile, from Brooklyn; and the prime sponsor of

         16  this legislation, Councilman David Yassky from

         17  Brooklyn.

         18                 And I'm going to call upon, before we

         19  start our questions, which I will lead off with, I'm

         20  going to call upon Council Member David Yassky, for

         21  a statement on his legislation.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

         23  Chair Weprin. I want to proceed with the hearing so

         24  I'll just very briefly thank you for holding this

         25  hearing.
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          2                 I really want to thank the

          3  Commissioner for, among all the extraordinary work

          4  that the Department has done under her leadership, I

          5  think this is a terrific program.

          6                 I, you know, want to see all parts of

          7  the New York City economy flourish, but there are a

          8  couple of job categories I wouldn't mind seeing a

          9  decline in. Ticket broker would be one of them. Not

         10  the ticket brokers for Madison Square Garden, but I

         11  mean the ticket broker you're referring to. Building

         12  Department expediter would be another one.

         13                 You know, they say only in New York,

         14  Mr. Chairman, but some parts that we shouldn't be so

         15  proud of, only in New York do people have to go out

         16  and hire somebody to help them deal with the

         17  government agencies that should be serving them.

         18  That's what these expediters are. And the reality of

         19  it is, most of these tickets, or many of them,

         20  certainly, are tickets that shouldn't be issued in

         21  the first place. And in talking about this program

         22  with folks, some business people, they have said,

         23  well, you know, you can't just get the Police

         24  Department not to issue tickets when we're entitled

         25  to be delivering? And I certainly don't think that
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          2  this program runs counter to that, and I'm sure it

          3  won't take away the incentives in the Police

          4  Department for proper training, but in the absence,

          5  you know, knowing, as we do, that there are going to

          6  be still tickets issued when they shouldn't be, and

          7  maybe even some when they should be, but it's still

          8  a business and it kind of has no choice but to do

          9  that, if they're going to do business in this very

         10  complicated City, with a transportation network that

         11  is at best 100 years old, and much older really,

         12  then they need to do business and this program helps

         13  them do that. So, Commissioner, thank you for

         14  putting it in place, and I look forward to the rest

         15  of the hearing.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chair, for moving

         17  this.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         19  Council member.

         20                 Commissioner Stark, Council Member

         21  Yassky referred to a lot of commercial tickets that,

         22  you know, should be invalid on its face. What

         23  percentage, if you had to break it down by

         24  percentage under the current system, are tickets

         25  that probably should not have been issued in the
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          2  first place?

          3                 COMMISSIONER STARK: I'm actually glad

          4  you asked that question, and would beg differ with

          5  the comment that they should not be issued in the

          6  first place.

          7                 I think when we ask the NYPD to write

          8  tickets, they actually are noting a violation, and

          9  there certainly is a violation here. The issue for

         10  us has been that even though there is a violation,

         11  there are rules in place that we use in adjudication

         12  to figure out whether or not those tickets should or

         13  should not be paid. That's really kind of the

         14  process here.

         15                 So, the NYPD's -- the NYPD should

         16  continue to issue these tickets. Actually, the

         17  reason why is it gives us really incredible data

         18  about how to sort of look at and see what's going on

         19  in terms of traffic patterns and the like.

         20                 What's very clear, though, is that

         21  those businesses have certified to us that their

         22  business model actually requires them to move

         23  quickly. You know, we all could sit here and name

         24  what those companies are. You know, those people who

         25  use Fresh Direct. Fresh Direct is not going to sit
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          2  there. They need to actually move and deliver those

          3  products and services incredibly quickly. FedEx is

          4  not sitting there, their business model suggests,

          5  UPS is not sitting there, that they are actually

          6  going to stay for less sort of time. That does not

          7  mean that they did not doublepark. They did

          8  doublepark. And the important thing was we want to

          9  provide a forum for them to be able to adjudicate

         10  that.

         11                 I think that what we've done with

         12  this program has certainly made it easier for them

         13  to adjudicate by having them certify up front that

         14  their business model requires them to move. We

         15  certainly will make sure that continues to be true,

         16  but this is not really about whether or not the NYPD

         17  should or should not have issued the ticket. The

         18  ticket actually noted a violation, that's

         19  appropriate for them to note that violation and then

         20  how we process that and what tickets they actually

         21  have to pay for, sort of a separate process.

         22                 So, I don't have absolute sort of

         23  numbers, but there is no question that when a double

         24  parking ticket is issued, the truck was

         25  doubleparked, there is no ifs, ands or buts about
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          2  it. That is what we ask the traffic enforcement

          3  agents to do, and what we want to make sure is that

          4  we're not making our process time consuming, and I,

          5  Council Member Yassky, join you and your idea that

          6  the New York City economy, these ticket brokers and

          7  expediters might be able to do a more valuable

          8  service on something else. It should not be

          9  difficult to access government services. It should

         10  not be time consuming for, you know, those companies

         11  that are getting tickets to have to spend all day

         12  with our judges, just basically going through to say

         13  our business model is that we're trying to sort of

         14  move.

         15                 So, I completely share your concern

         16  about that, and this program really does balance all

         17  of those sort of pieces of the puzzle.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         19  Commissioner. We've been joined by Council Member

         20  Mike McMahon from Staten Island.

         21                 Welcome.

         22                 Do you anticipate bringing on

         23  additional personnel should this program become

         24  codified?

         25                 COMMISSIONER STARK: As a matter of

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  fact, we don't need additional personnel if the

          3  program becomes codified. It's very, very easy for

          4  people to sort of register. We've got a team of

          5  lawyers actually who review the application, get

          6  folks to articulate the business model. I certainly

          7  would ask Mr. Thorpe how easy it has been for his

          8  companies to sort of enroll. Once it's in our

          9  computer system, and, you know, we certainly always

         10  want to make sure our computer system is able to

         11  handle it, it becomes a very, very simple data,

         12  really management, and monitoring process for us.

         13  So, we don't anticipate needing additional staff to

         14  do this, and as a matter of fact it's really, as I

         15  said, we've been able to redirect some of our

         16  resources and save on some of our adjudications cost

         17  as a result of this program.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: What about

         19  additional office space? Would there be any

         20  additional office space required?

         21                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Not really. I

         22  don't believe that we have any additional needs as

         23  associated with this. It's a really, really

         24  straightforward and easy program for us to

         25  administer.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. I know you

          3  referred earlier that the purpose of the tickets are

          4  not necessarily to generate revenue, although that

          5  is a very substantial amount of money you referred

          6  to earlier in excess of $500 million on an annual

          7  basis, especially when we have anticipated deficits.

          8  How do you think this program will affect the

          9  overall collection of revenue in dollar amounts.

         10                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Well, just again,

         11  you're right that $550 million, certainly for a kid

         12  like me who grew up in the Housing Projects in

         13  Brownsville, seems like a lot.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: A kid like me,

         15  who grew up in Jamaica Estates, too.

         16                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Right. Exactly.

         17  Yes, right. Brownsville, Brooklyn, that's where I'm

         18  sort of from.

         19                 But, you know, Finance collects $22

         20  billion in revenue, and what's interesting about the

         21  $550 million of parking tickets is it's associated

         22  with sort of a lot of tickets, and you know, I've

         23  said this before, and I think that one of the things

         24  I'm really thrilled with is the Chief Administrative

         25  Law Judge shares this. It's really actually for the
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          2  public, sort of their opportunity to see what a

          3  system of justice is around, you know, or about.

          4  And, you know, we've actually enabled people to come

          5  in and tried to do this as objectively as possible.

          6  It's really been kind of a great sort of way to say,

          7  hey, we're going to do these tickets, want to do

          8  them fairly and in a way that sort of really makes

          9  sense for the public.

         10                 So, yes, it's $550 million. The

         11  budget is not going to affect -- you know, we have a

         12  City where traffic flow is an issue. There certainly

         13  are not enough parking spaces around, and we don't

         14  see that it's going to have any sort of real change.

         15                 Basically about 10 million tickets

         16  are issued a year. That's kind of on average. That

         17  hasn't changed very much, and we don't anticipate

         18  very much, you know, sort of change in terms of the

         19  effect on this in the budget. I mean, if the ticket

         20  prices go up, we'll adjust our schedules accordingly

         21  and keep pace for this.

         22                 You know, it's important for people

         23  to realize, I mean Council Member Yassky talked

         24  about the New York City economy, the companies that

         25  deliver goods and services to this City are doing a
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          2  really, it's a valuable thing that they're doing,

          3  and they will tell you that it is difficult to move

          4  around New York, and they pay, probably what we've

          5  heard is the amount that they pay in parking tickets

          6  to New York City alone tops what they pay around the

          7  country and the world all combined. And, you know,

          8  if we can make it easier for them to pay us,

          9  whatever is that amount, for the privilege of being

         10  able to sort of deliver here, we want to make it

         11  easier for them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. We've

         13  been joined by Council Member Peter Vallone, Jr.,

         14  from Queens, and Council Member John Liu from

         15  Queens.

         16                 I'm going to turn it over to Council

         17  Member Yassky.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, thank

         19  you. I guess I just have one question, or two

         20  questions. This one is more of a comment.

         21                 You know, your recasting of my point

         22  about tickets shouldn't be issued in the first

         23  place, okay, that makes sense to me, and I can

         24  change the way I think about it to say you're right,

         25  we want to know what people are doing and they're
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          2  issuing a ticket, because there is, in fact,

          3  doubleparking.

          4                 Just for your head, when talking to a

          5  lot of businesses about this, they believe that they

          6  are entitled to doublepark for a brief time to make

          7  a delivery, and I believe that under the rules they

          8  are. So, you know, under this program they are still

          9  paying some fine. I think what we're doing here is

         10  saying, you know, there is not doubleparking, where

         11  there is no penalty, there is doubleparking when

         12  you're not allowed to and there is full penalty, and

         13  then there is this doubleparking when you're allowed

         14  to when there is, you know, you're paying what's

         15  essentially what's a cost of doing business to be

         16  able to do that. We're acknowledging something

         17  that's been a bit of an unacknowledged fact of life,

         18  and I think that's a good thing, it's always good to

         19  get government policy out there to be transparent,

         20  we are saying you have to pay for the privilege, if

         21  you will, of doing this. We all benefit from it,

         22  that's fine. So, that's their perspective.

         23                 I think, like I say, I think this

         24  enables people to do business in a far, far better

         25  way than having to either, you know, write the full
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          2  check or go down and have somebody spend three days,

          3  you know, a month, dealing with the tickets. This is

          4  a huge improvement, so I thank you for it.

          5                 My one question I'm told, and I don't

          6  think there has been discussion on this, I

          7  understand right now there is no fee for

          8  participating in the program, as it were. I'm told

          9  the Department is considering a very small modesty.

         10  I have no issue with that. I just want to confirm

         11  that and so the bill should permit that, is I

         12  believe the Department's position?

         13                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Right. What we

         14  really want is to have the right on the Fleet

         15  program. The Fleet program, if you will, is the

         16  umbrella program that really allows us to bill

         17  people sort of systematically and regularly,

         18  actually allows us to update our computer systems,

         19  to keep that data. We want to at least be able to

         20  perhaps recruit those charges. So, Council Member

         21  Weprin asked questions like do we need more staff,

         22  but it's actually the umbrella Fleet program that we

         23  would like to have the right to possibly consider

         24  charging a fee for that.

         25                 And then what I call them is the
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          2  subsidiary programs are, you know, so what is the

          3  Commercial Abatement Program, what's New York City

          4  Delivery Solutions, those programs, once you are in

          5  a fleet, are very easy to administer minimal cost

          6  involved with doing those. So, yes, that is true. We

          7  would actually like you to not say we can't charge a

          8  fee, but that based on us looking at a cost, that we

          9  might be able to charge a fee if we need to. That's

         10  what we're sort of suggesting.

         11                 On the issuing tickets, and I

         12  appreciate your willingness to sort of describe it

         13  in a way that actually really represents what this

         14  program is for, for the City of New York. I think

         15  that certainly you cannot doublepark in Midtown. I

         16  just want to be very clear. No, there is no

         17  doubleparking allowed in Midtown.

         18                 There is, certainly the rules suggest

         19  if you are an expeditious delivery, you can park in

         20  sort of, you know, doublepark and have that ticket

         21  reduced basically to nothing.

         22                 I think the question is, who do you

         23  want to make that judgment call? Do you want a

         24  traffic person on the street deciding and going

         25  truck-by-truck, or is there a better way? We believe
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          2  there is a better way and the better way is to

          3  actually have a program where the companies certify

          4  to us their business model, and then we can apply a

          5  consistent set of standards as to how that should be

          6  done.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, thank

          8  you. I'll leave it be. I think you pinpointed,

          9  that's just the right way to think about it, who

         10  should make the decision. And to be clear, citizens

         11  and including citizens who run and work in

         12  companies, can choose to stick with the current plan

         13  --

         14                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Absolutely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: -- In which if

         16  you want you can adjudicate it case-by-case, if you

         17  think that's a better system. This gives people an

         18  alternative that I've got to believe for any company

         19  that is making deliveries on a regular basis, they

         20  will find to be far preferable.

         21                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

         23                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         25  Council member.
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          2                 We've been joined by Council Member

          3  Eric Gioia from Queens.

          4                 The next questioner is Council Member

          5  Oliver Koppell.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman.

          8                 When you testified, I'm not sure it

          9  was you who testified, when I heard about this

         10  program two years ago, I had skepticism about it and

         11  I guess I still do.

         12                 But first of all, while you talk

         13  about settlement amounts, you don't really indicate

         14  what that is, how those are figured and are those

         15  discretionary. You are giving people who are part of

         16  these programs a break, right, in what they have to

         17  pay? They don't pay the full cost of the ticket?

         18                 COMMISSIONER STARK: That is true. I

         19  wouldn't call it a break. It's interesting. Let me

         20  tell you how we arrive at the fine amounts, and

         21  stipulated settlement amount.

         22                 Basically we had lots of data in our

         23  database from having conducted hearings. By

         24  violation code, and actually we have a list of the

         25  violation codes along with what the dollar amount is
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          2  of the regular fine and what companies are actually

          3  paying for tickets. So, we did two things: One is,

          4  you know, the NYPD is required to make sure every

          5  ticket includes certain amount of information. They

          6  need to write down the address if you are issued a

          7  ticket before, in front of the building. They have

          8  to properly describe your vehicle. You know, they

          9  can't say that you have a yellow car, if the car is

         10  sort of blue. You know, they can't say it's a sedan,

         11  if it's a minivan. You know, sort of different sort

         12  of rules.

         13                 So, there's a certain standard by

         14  which they have to meet.

         15                 So, what we've done is, we compiled

         16  all the data that we had about tickets that were

         17  issued to these vehicles and the decisions that our

         18  Administrative Law Judges made about those tickets.

         19  We categorized them by the seriousness of the

         20  offense. And in New York's sort of system, you have

         21  no parking violations. No parking violations are not

         22  as serious as no standing violations, and no

         23  standing violations are not as serious as no

         24  stopping violations. Among no stopping include

         25  parking at a bus stop, or parking at a meter, or
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          2  parking in areas -- I'm sorry? Oh, a fire hydrant.

          3  They always make me say fire hydrant. Or parking at

          4  a fire hydrant, all of those are sort of no stopping

          5  areas. So, it's based on the severity of the ticket,

          6  and what was the dismissal rate, if you will, or I

          7  should say the upholding rate that we incurred for

          8  them.

          9                 So, what you'll see if you look at

         10  the violation descriptions, or the no parking

         11  violations are the ones where essentially an

         12  expeditious delivery defense was allowed. So, those

         13  tickets actually go down to zero.

         14                 The tickets that, we call them

         15  "yellow" or sort of the no standing violations,

         16  they pay a percent of those tickets. I don't

         17  remember what the number is off the top of my head.

         18  Is it 40 percent of them? Twenty-five percent of the

         19  ticket amount. Again, that mimicked a pattern of how

         20  judges were deciding those cases. And in the case of

         21  no stopping violations, the most serious sort of

         22  violations, they're paying 90 percent of those

         23  tickets. Why are they paying 90 percent? Because

         24  when we looked at data, and by the way, when I first

         25  testified here they were paying only 85 percent of
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          2  those tickets. As a result of us having hand-helds

          3  now, and the NYPD using hand-helds to issue tickets,

          4  the accuracy of the tickets have improved. And as a

          5  result now only ten percent of our tickets overall

          6  are found to be defective, not having really key

          7  pieces of information.

          8                 So, we took the rate out from 85

          9  percent to 90 percent for the most serious

         10  violations.

         11                 I would note for you, Council member,

         12  you know, these companies, and people say, well, you

         13  know, they're kind of getting a free ride or getting

         14  a break, they continue to pay us on average about

         15  $100 million a year, so commercial vehicles are not

         16  paying an insignificant amount of tickets. So, we

         17  collect $550 million, 20 percent of that amount is

         18  actually paid by commercial vehicles.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, okay.

         20  But I think that one would have to I think concede,

         21  or at least I believe, that it would be better not

         22  to issue a ticket at all than to issue a ticket

         23  especially in the case where you don't even impose a

         24  fine.

         25                 So, I don't understand why you would
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          2  issue a ticket for no parking to a delivery vehicle,

          3  and then forgive the offense. What's the point of

          4  issuing the ticket?

          5                 COMMISSIONER STARK: I don't agree

          6  with you. I actually think that by issuing the

          7  ticket, first of all, you're getting incredibly

          8  useful data about traffic patterns, parking

          9  patterns, congestion sort of in the City. It gives

         10  you very important sort of data.

         11                 Second, as I responded to Council

         12  Member Yassky about this, I think that the question

         13  is who do you want making those decisions? You know,

         14  like you, you know, I'm a lawyer. I think that it's

         15  the -- is it the individual cop that you want making

         16  a determination of which businesses are an

         17  expeditious delivery, or is there a better process?

         18  We believe we've got a better process. And the

         19  better process is, I'll sort of repeat again, to

         20  have those companies actually come sort of forward,

         21  describe to us their business model and have us put

         22  together a sort of plan, a stipulated fine plan that

         23  reflects that business model.

         24                 Not every business is actually in

         25  expeditious delivery. If you're getting new cable,
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          2  for example, and you're Time Warner Cable Company;

          3  can they sometimes be there 30 minutes? Not always

          4  30 minutes. So, is that a company that you want the

          5  NYPD Traffic Enforcement Agent or someone else

          6  saying, no, in this case I think isn't an

          7  expeditious business, in another case it is, I don't

          8  believe you want them making those decisions as

          9  they're walking their beat, trying to figure out how

         10  to make sure traffic is moving.

         11                 So, I think we balanced this in

         12  exactly the right way.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, with

         14  all due respect, I mean I hear what you're saying

         15  but I don't think it's frankly -- what you're doing

         16  is you're giving a break to companies that register

         17  in this proposal, and the small companies that may

         18  be just as needy of parking for a short period of

         19  time don't get this break.

         20                 COMMISSIONER STARK: That's not true.

         21  That's not true.

         22                 In fact, when the judges are

         23  reviewing the tickets of the small company, they

         24  also abide by this. Now, the only question for the

         25  small company person is, is it worth their while to
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          2  come and adjudicate the ticket? So, the judges are

          3  not differentiating. If it is a small company that

          4  comes in, is in the business of expeditious

          5  delivery, but for whatever reason they chose to not

          6  register in this program, they're paying the exact

          7  same fine that a person who registers in this

          8  program pays.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It's very

         10  nice to give benefits to people who are in what you

         11  call "expeditious delivery," but I would suggest

         12  that most deliveries are in the nature, not all

         13  deliveries, obviously, but most deliveries are in

         14  the nature of expeditious delivery.

         15                 COMMISSIONER STARK: And that's why we

         16  have the second program.

         17                 Again, the DOT traffic rules are

         18  around expeditious delivery. Those companies by rule

         19  are allowed to park in some places, receive a

         20  violation and have that violation eliminated.

         21                 Companies who are not in expeditious

         22  delivery but actually do deliver things, there is a

         23  separate sort of program for them, also with a

         24  schedule of discounted fines consistent with what

         25  are the traffic rules and laws.
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          2                 So, you know what? Any company

          3  engaged in delivery has an opportunity to

          4  participate either in this program, or if they opt

          5  to come in and challenge their ticket, they are

          6  subjected to the same fine schedule. So, regardless

          7  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: If I make a

          9  delivery, let's assume I make a delivery.

         10                 COMMISSIONER STARK: You as a Council

         11  Member, or in your role as a business?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, no. I'm

         13  just a citizen.

         14                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Mm-hmm.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And I've got

         16  to deliver something to a friend. I've got to

         17  deliver a package to a friend. And I park in a no

         18  parking area, and I get a ticket; what's going to

         19  happen when I go before the Judge?

         20                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Do you have a

         21  commercial plate? Are you saying you and your

         22  individual role?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, let's

         24  assume I have a commercial plate.

         25                 COMMISSIONER STARK: All right. This
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          2  is your, I mean, you're delivering it to a friend?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I'll

          4  change the hypothetical.

          5                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Okay, that would

          6  be useful.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I don't come

          8  to the City that often, but this time I'm delivering

          9  some parts to a business.

         10                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Right, and you

         11  get a ticket.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And I usually

         13  am on Long Island and don't come into the City, but

         14  I come into the City that day to deliver the part to

         15  this company in this City, I park in a no parking

         16  area and I get a ticket.

         17                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Okay.

         18                 And you did that expeditiously.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

         20                 COMMISSIONER STARK: And you come

         21  forward and you say, and challenge that ticket

         22  before a Chief Administrative Law Judge, or one of

         23  our Law Judges, you would get the same fine. You

         24  would pay the same fine.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: You said
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          2  they're pay nothing.

          3                 COMMISSIONER STARK: That is correct,

          4  and that is what you would pay. As long as you make

          5  the case that you did this expeditiously and you

          6  were delivering, you have a commercial plate, you

          7  would pay nothing.

          8                 Now, but here is the cost that you

          9  would incur, and, again, just to Council Member

         10  Yassky's good point, you will have taken your time

         11  to come in and you will have also had us use a judge

         12  to adjudicate those tickets.

         13                 If you do that on an occasional basis

         14  and you don't mind spending that time, you are free

         15  to do that.

         16                 Many other companies have decided

         17  they would prefer not to have their people stop and

         18  come in and adjudicate those tickets, because this

         19  schedule actually sort of makes sense and balances

         20  sort of their needs.

         21                 So, that would be your choice, but

         22  you would pay nothing for that ticket, just like the

         23  people listed here.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I still

         25  have some skepticism over this. I mean, I think that
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          2  especially with modern, you know, modern technology.

          3  I mean, I want to -- I don't want to belabor the

          4  point, but I went to a garage in White Plains

          5  recently, and it was all automated in a way that you

          6  didn't even have to put a little label in the, you

          7  know, on the windshield anymore, it was automated

          8  somehow that they could check and see how long you

          9  stayed and give you a summons.

         10                 I mean, I think we'd be a lot better

         11  off if we had some system where if we want to let

         12  people do this, then have a system that lets them do

         13  it.

         14                 COMMISSIONER STARK: I just, I guess,

         15  you know, again, Council member, I'm not begging to

         16  differ with, you know, are there certainly

         17  technology that is going to give us lots more

         18  opportunities of ways to be creative as it relates

         19  to this program? Certainly that will happen.

         20                 I think that, you know, in government

         21  we move consistent with, you know, sort of the

         22  technology that's available to us. This is certainly

         23  a technological improvement. The fact that the

         24  ticket, you know, people receiving the ticket don't

         25  have to bring in that ticket to us. It actually
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          2  automatically hits our system. If their fleet is

          3  registered, their plate is registered, anything that

          4  hits that plate, we know exactly how to bill them in

          5  fairly short order after the ticket was issued, the

          6  fact the tickets are being issued using hand-helds,

          7  but even the paper tickets, once a paper ticket is

          8  issued, hits our system, automatically they get a

          9  bill for it. It's an advancement. Can we get to the

         10  place where White Plains where they actually have

         11  lots of parking lots where you can go in and out and

         12  not even have to, you know, take, you know, yes, I

         13  hope we move in that direction. But certainly is a

         14  vast improvement over our prior process where

         15  essentially, again, if you're a business person

         16  you've got ten, 12 vehicles out there on the street,

         17  sometimes the drivers would end up putting the

         18  tickets in the, you know, glove compartment, and the

         19  company, the president of the company never got wind

         20  of those tickets until we had already asserted

         21  penalties against them. There is huge advances that

         22  we have made steps forward that we've made in a

         23  fairly short time.

         24                 Look, you know, I'd love to get to a

         25  place where perhaps we could do something, you know,
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          2  sort of different, you know, have a decal, just have

          3  the, you know, cops scan that decal, the system, the

          4  information goes into a computer system without us

          5  necessarily generating paper. We're not there yet,

          6  but this certainly puts us -- takes, I would say,

          7  ten steps forward towards getting to a place where

          8  we could be there.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: You made a

         10  very good suggestion just now with the decal.

         11                 But, let me just ask one last

         12  question. The no parking, I understand that now, and

         13  you're giving no fine at all. I'm not sure that's a

         14  great idea, but what about the doubleparking? Do you

         15  still get a fine for doubleparking?

         16                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Doubleparking, if

         17  you're in the Central Business District, you do pay

         18  a fine for. If you're in the boroughs doubleparking,

         19  basically there is no fine for doubleparking. Again,

         20  that's consistent with DOT's rule, provided you're

         21  in expeditious sort of delivery.

         22                 The rules say if you are, typically

         23  your business models, 30 minutes or less, you're

         24  sort of moving through, then that ticket is actually

         25  by rule supposed to be dismissed.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, again,

          3  Commissioner, with all due respect, if doubleparking

          4  by -- I mean, maybe you should have a decal system.

          5  Maybe that's a good idea. But if you're not going to

          6  put a fine, you shouldn't be giving a ticket.

          7                 I mean, it's crazy. It just doesn't

          8  make any sense.

          9                 COMMISSIONER STARK: You know, we can

         10  agree to respectfully disagree about that. I think

         11  that the ticket should issue and we should not have

         12  the NYPD charged with trying to make individual

         13  decisions about whether or not the fines should go

         14  -- again, only if you are an expeditious delivery

         15  is doubleparking a zero dollar amount.

         16                 If you are not in expeditious

         17  delivery, and it's not your business model, you get

         18  a reduction, but it is not zero.

         19                 So, it really kind of is about the

         20  business model. And I don't know how we could really

         21  successfully train traffic enforcement officer to

         22  make that distinction. You know, I think that they

         23  recognize that you did doublepark, you were

         24  doubleparked, and what we've done is come up with a

         25  system of saying let's have these companies register
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          2  with us, tell us what their business model is. If

          3  their business model is consistent with expeditious

          4  delivery, then what will happen is those tickets

          5  automatically will be dismissed for those companies

          6  in expeditious delivery. Those not in expeditious

          7  delivery consistent with the outcome of hearings in

          8  the past, will actually be reduced if you are a

          9  company that doesn't have that business model.

         10                 So, it's, you know, really again, you

         11  know, are there advances that can be made with

         12  technology? Certainly there are, and we will -- this

         13  program allows us to sort of take advantage of those

         14  advances as they occur.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, Mr.

         16  Chairman, I respectfully disagree. I think it's

         17  absurd to give a ticket to someone that you're not

         18  going to fine. It just doesn't make any sense. A

         19  waste of time and effort.

         20                 Giving some reduction, I can

         21  understand that. I have some sympathy for that idea,

         22  because of the exigencies of the need to make these

         23  deliveries, but to give a ticket when you don't fine

         24  at all, it doesn't make any sense to me.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

          3  Council Member.

          4                 Council Member John Liu.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chairman, for holding this hearing. And I want to

          7  thank Council Member Yassky for introducing this

          8  bill, which I support.

          9                 I will echo the frustrations of

         10  Council Member Koppell. I think he is absolutely

         11  right. It's ridiculous for the City to be issuing

         12  tickets where we know in advance of issuing those

         13  tickets that 25 to 30 percent of those tickets will

         14  be dismissed if the person actually took the time to

         15  adjudicate it, instead of just throwing up his hands

         16  in the air and paying the ticket itself.

         17                 Commissioner, I don't think that

         18  frustration should be directed towards you. Because

         19  I think as Finance Commissioner you're doing the

         20  right thing. You're making the process as efficient

         21  as possible.

         22                 But you don't have to stick up for

         23  the rest of the Administration and the NYPD. You

         24  know, if, in fact, we have along the books that it's

         25  merely impossible for a police officer or traffic
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          2  agent to enforce, then we ought to look at that law.

          3                 Writing tickets, this is not an

          4  advance prepayment for something. This is not about

          5  billing, it's not about business model. When we

          6  write a ticket in the City of New York or anywhere,

          7  it is a notice of violation. We are accusing someone

          8  of breaking the law. And that's what I think we need

          9  to understand what these summonses mean.

         10                 It upsets people to be accused of

         11  something when they know, they're pretty sure that

         12  they're not doing anything wrong. So, it's not just

         13  about payment and making things easier for business.

         14  I do appreciate the innovation that your Department

         15  came up with, but as a City, and this is something

         16  that perhaps someone else from the Administration

         17  should really speak to at some point. We just should

         18  not be issuing tickets and accusing people of crimes

         19  when in fact they're not guilty. And when we have 25

         20  to 30 percent of these being issued, when we know in

         21  advance that 25 to 30 percent of these will be

         22  dismissed, I think it's wrong.

         23                 So, it's not just about payment, it's

         24  not just about ease, it's not just about

         25  understanding business model, we are accusing people
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          2  of breaking the law. That's something that we should

          3  not do flippantly.

          4                 COMMISSIONER STARK: You know, again,

          5  with all due respect, I think I slightly disagree.

          6  There is no question that when a doubleparking

          7  ticket is issued the vehicle was doubleparked.

          8                 I mean, I don't think that you could

          9  say, well, you know, they're issuing a doubleparking

         10  ticket and they were parked legally. They were

         11  doubleparked in the case of these commercial

         12  vehicles. Again, you know, I believe --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Commissioner, I

         14  don't think that's what the law says. When you

         15  accuse someone of doubleparking, the statute very

         16  clearly says doubleparking is this, except --

         17                 COMMISSIONER STARK: No, actually,

         18  it's not in the law. There is a DOT rule. Actually,

         19  the DOT rule says you can assert an affirmative

         20  defense. It does not say, by the way, you know,

         21  doubleparking tickets shall not issue if someone is

         22  doubleparked.

         23                 It's actually an affirmative offense

         24  that the person has to raise in a hearing.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Commissioner, I'm
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          2  here to support --

          3                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Oh, no question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: -- What you have

          5  done with your program and what Councilman Yassky

          6  and Chairman Weprin are looking in terms of pushing

          7  this bill. It's just not necessary for you to keep

          8  disputing.
          9                 COMMISSIONER STARK: No, no --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Whether you go by

         11  law or rule, it is still, you know, it's not

         12  acceptable for me, as an elected member of the City

         13  Council, to hear anybody from the Administration say

         14  that this is just, you know, you can defend your

         15  program, and I'm in support of your program.

         16                 COMMISSIONER STARK: I'm not defending

         17  my program, but I do think that the record should

         18  accurately reflect what the DOT rule does. And the

         19  DOT rule does not say a ticket, if the NYPD issues a

         20  doubleparking violation, they are doing it in error.

         21  What the rules require is for the businesses to

         22  assert as an affirmative defense that they have been

         23  engaged in expeditious delivery. And you more than

         24  -- certainly, as much as I, am familiar with

         25  affirmative defenses.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Right.

          3                 COMMISSIONER STARK: You know, again,

          4  I don't want to fight with you --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: I don't want to

          6  fight with you either. Believe me.

          7                 COMMISSIONER STARK: You know --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: You're the

          9  Finance Commissioner. You know where I live.

         10                 COMMISSIONER STARK: That is true.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: And how much your

         12  house is worth.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes, that's

         14  right.

         15                 COMMISSIONER STARK: No, seriously --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: She actually can

         17  tell me how much my house is worth.

         18                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Absolutely.

         19                 No, really, you know, with all due

         20  respect, I appreciate what you're saying. I just

         21  believe that the characterization of it as

         22  automatically this ticket shouldn't issue because --

         23  but the rule puts a burden really on a company to

         24  tell us what business they are involved in. That's

         25  what the adjudication process is about, and you're
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          2  right, what we've done is make that piece a bit

          3  simple, straightforward, clear and easy for

          4  businesses to engage in.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: All right. I just

          6  have a few questions, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 In your testimony, Commissioner, when

          8  you're talking about the commercial abatement

          9  program. At the end it says, in return for agreeing

         10  to pay stipulated amounts, they waive their right to

         11  contest all parking tickets they receive.

         12                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Mm-hmm.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So that's like

         14  any parking ticket, any type?

         15                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Against that

         16  commercial vehicle.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Right. But I

         18  mean, that means they could park on the sidewalk,

         19  park in someone's driveway.

         20                 COMMISSIONER STARK: You guys want to

         21  step up here, because my team is sort of chiming in

         22  here. So, Mary, why don't you sit up here, or

         23  Rochelle. One of you.

         24                 Basically the way that the fines

         25  work, if they're parked on a sidewalk, they are
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          2  certainly paying a fine associated with parking on a

          3  sidewalk.

          4                 We have a schedule by violation type,

          5  depending on the kind of violation it is. The ticket

          6  fines are adjusted.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Okay.

          8                 COMMISSIONER STARK: So, they are not

          9  paying nothing for parking on the sidewalk.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Okay, two more

         11  questions.

         12                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Sure.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: With regard to

         14  the -- you know, when these tickets, I have received

         15  in my office complaints that there is a noticeable

         16  increase in the number of tickets that are being

         17  issued, not for double parking, these are on

         18  delivery trucks, but on parking in a traffic lane.

         19                 Now, how does that figure into this

         20  program? Does your program include parking in

         21  traffic lanes? Because that really is another way of

         22  saying doubleparking.

         23                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Basically, yes.

         24  We adjust the tickets, if you're parking in a

         25  traffic lane as well.
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          2                 We actually could take a look at the

          3  data to see if there has been a significant increase

          4  between -- I mean, from double parking to parking in

          5  a traffic lane. You do get a discount, even if the

          6  ticket is for parking in a traffic lane. Not as much

          7  as you get for doubleparking, that's correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So, here again, I

          9  mean this is another imperfection in the way the

         10  traffic rules are enforced.

         11                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Well, again --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Are you saying

         13  that there is no noticeable increase in the numbers?

         14                 COMMISSIONER STARK: I don't know.

         15  I'll get you that data. I will be happy to get the

         16  Committee --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes, take a look.

         18  Take a look.

         19                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Sure. We can

         20  certainly do that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: I'm getting a

         22  significant amount of increase in complaints about,

         23  you know, they used to give me doubleparking, and

         24  they actually say I'm involved in this program, now

         25  I'm getting all these tickets for parking in traffic
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          2  lanes.

          3                 COMMISSIONER STARK: We'll take a look

          4  at the data and get back to the Committee about

          5  that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Okay. And then my

          7  last question, Mr. Chairman, is: Commissioner, in

          8  your testimony, you talk about you'd be happy to

          9  enroll the City Council fleet in the program. I

         10  didn't realize we had a fleet. I thought we had,

         11  maybe we have like three or four cars.

         12                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Let me tell you

         13  how the program works. It's interesting --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We're waiting for

         15  our cars, Councilman.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes. Let me just

         17  ask. The question is, it is not about our fleets, I

         18  don't think we have any fleets, it's about the

         19  City's agency fleets.

         20                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Mm-hmm.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So, are the City

         22  agencies getting tickets for doubleparking?

         23                 COMMISSIONER STARK: The City agency

         24  fleets are in a program. Again, you weren't here

         25  when I described it a little earlier.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Okay.

          3                 COMMISSIONER STARK: The Fleet program

          4  is an umbrella program, and the umbrella is

          5  essentially all you do is you tell us, we have a

          6  fleet that operates in the City and we enroll it so

          7  that any time --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: I'm talking about

          9  City agencies.

         10                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Yes, I'm talking

         11  about City agencies. And they can enroll all of the

         12  cars, their official cars, in this sort of program,

         13  not in the stipulated fine program, in the Fleet

         14  program. All that means is we send out regular bills

         15  to them, we compile all their tickets in a report so

         16  that they can get that monthly and that actually has

         17  facilitated the agency's ability to actually go to

         18  the people and say, well, you got a ticket for X, Y

         19  and Z, we're filing an official business defense --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So, you're saying

         21  DOT vehicles, DOT vehicles are getting tickets?

         22                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Well, people --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: DCAS?

         24                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Absolutely they

         25  get tickets.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Department of

          3  Education?

          4                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Sure those

          5  vehicles get tickets. Why are you surprised about

          6  that?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Who pays for the

          8  tickets?

          9                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Well, the

         10  individual driver of the vehicle is required to pay

         11  the ticket, unless they have a plac --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: The individual

         13  driver is actually on the hook for the ticket?

         14                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Absolutely.

         15  Absolutely.

         16                 And it's the best way actually for

         17  the agencies to keep track of it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Who owns the car?

         19                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Typically the

         20  City owns the vehicle, or even if it's a vehicle

         21  with a placard that is registered to an individual,

         22  if you're going to get a placard you have to give

         23  your plate. We want to be able to hold folks

         24  accountable for that.

         25                 Part of the reason why we started
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          2  enrolling the City fleet in is during a change in

          3  Administration, or someone sort of leaves, a lot of

          4  times what our agency had been confronted with is,

          5  oh, my God, you know, I'll just use your name as an

          6  example, Council Member Liu --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: I'd rather you

          8  not.

          9                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Okay. Council

         10  Member Liu got 25 tickets, of course the way the

         11  press works, it will end up you said you really got

         12  25 tickets. You did not.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Listen, it would

         14  take me a whole six months to rack up that many

         15  tickets.

         16                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Absolutely. You

         17  know, you got 25 tickets, and then John Liu has now

         18  left City government, so how am I going to get John

         19  Liu to pay those tickets? So, being able to say on a

         20  monthly basis over that six-month period, Council

         21  Member Liu got those tickets and we are going to

         22  collect against him, not just collect, have him pay,

         23  but if he doesn't pay, withhold from his paycheck,

         24  et cetera, et cetera, it really has made more

         25  efficient that collection.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: All right. Just

          3  for the record, I want to say that this was purely

          4  hypothetical.

          5                 COMMISSIONER STARK: That is correct.

          6  It was. I completely concede that this is a

          7  hypothetical example, and I know of no tickets that

          8  Council Member Liu has.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you.

         10                 COMMISSIONER STARK: I'm happy to

         11  check when I get back, though.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And she knows

         13  where I live.

         14                 So, do City agencies pay for any of

         15  these tickets?

         16                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Absolutely, they

         17  do. Absolutely.

         18                 No, do the City agencies or

         19  individuals?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: The City

         21  agencies.

         22                 COMMISSIONER STARK: The City agencies

         23  don't pay, the individuals pay for those tickets.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: The individuals

         25  pay out of their pocket.

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 COMMISSIONER STARK: That is correct.

          3  That's correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Is that a total

          5  statement that City agencies never pay for parking

          6  tickets?

          7                 COMMISSIONER STARK: That is correct.

          8  The City agencies are never paying for their parking

          9  tickets. If parking tickets have been issued and

         10  their owed, the person driving the vehicle at the

         11  time, it's why every person who actually has a City

         12  vehicle is required to keep a log of the time that

         13  they are in the vehicle, and basically we're able to

         14  trace it back to those individuals. And as I said,

         15  it's become much more efficient, our ability to do

         16  that, by having enrolled their fleets in the

         17  program.

         18                 Again, you know, I don't want to sort

         19  of prolong this, but I do remember when I first

         20  became Finance Commissioner, there was a person in

         21  our agency who, and who had left, apparently a

         22  couple of years prior, who literally had tickets in

         23  their drawer, their desk drawer that had been issued

         24  to sort of various employees at the Department of

         25  Finance, and getting those employees to pay those
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          2  tickets after so much time had expired was a

          3  problem. That's why we have enrolled them in the

          4  Fleet. It's automatic. We now are better able to

          5  keep track to collect the money that's owed the City

          6  when tickets are issued.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

          8  much, Commissioner.

          9                 COMMISSIONER STARK: You're very

         10  welcome.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. We've

         14  been joined by Council Member Diana Reyna, from

         15  Brooklyn and Queens. We've been joined by Council

         16  Member Alan Gerson from Manhattan, and we were

         17  joined by Council Member Robert Jackson from

         18  Manhattan and Council Member Albert Vann from

         19  Brooklyn, who had to go across the street to vote on

         20  an item.

         21                 The next questioner is Council Member

         22  Peter Vallone, Jr.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you.

         24                 Let me echo the skepticism of John

         25  Liu and Oliver Koppell. I'm a law and order kind of
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          2  guy also, and I happen to believe that if a truck is

          3  doubleparked and blocking up New York City traffic

          4  and gets a legitimate ticket, that they should not

          5  have their ticket reduced to 15 percent of the face

          6  amount.

          7                 My own opinion would be, get rid of

          8  all the fake parking permits, get rid of all the

          9  non-NYPD parking permits, clear the truck loading

         10  zones and have them park where they're supposed to

         11  park, without implementing a program like this.

         12                 Failing that, you know, I have great

         13  respect for you and David Yassky, so I'm not going

         14  to say I oppose this, because greater minds than

         15  mine have thought a lot about this and apparently

         16  have come up with a system that they believe works.

         17                 But let me say this, I did have a few

         18  Public Safety hearings with Ray Kelly, and he raised

         19  the exact same objections that I'm raising, that

         20  John raised and that Oliver raised, that he was very

         21  upset, very upset that his officers and agents were

         22  giving out tickets, legitimate tickets, that were

         23  being dismissed by your agency.

         24                 So, my question is: What is the

         25  Police Department's position on this bill?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STARK: I think you

          3  should certainly ask the Police Department, but the

          4  Administration supports this bill, and we're all

          5  part of the same Administration, the folks at the

          6  NYPD have reviewed our testimony. They've looked at

          7  this bill and they certainly support it.

          8                 I do think that characterizing this

          9  as dismissing tickets -- it's interesting that you

         10  said that you agreed with Council Member Liu's

         11  expression, I actually think that he was saying

         12  something a little bit different than what you just

         13  said.

         14                 Again, you know --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: His original

         16  skepticism, after his first sentence I lost both of

         17  you guys.

         18                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Oh, okay.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So, after

         20  that, I don't know.

         21                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Parking in this

         22  City is a tricky business, and I think that, you

         23  know, we have businesses here that are trying to

         24  make deliveries and the question is, how do we make

         25  it, you know, sort of an environment that
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          2  facilitates that? They're making deliveries to the

          3  Council for things that you might be getting

          4  certainly at the holiday time, since I always wait

          5  til the last minute to order their, you know,

          6  bringing me the presents that ordered at the last

          7  minute, they provide a valuable service to this

          8  City, and I think that we need to balance making

          9  sure that traffic can freely flow, along with, you

         10  know, sort of the needs of us really. The businesses

         11  aren't just delivering just for the sake of it,

         12  they're delivering to get us goods and services that

         13  we need.

         14                 So, the NYPD, you certainly are free

         15  to ask them, but they are supportive of this bill,

         16  too, because it takes into account and balances both

         17  the NYPD's interest, as well as sort of the business

         18  interests, DOT's interests, and Finance's ability to

         19  effectively provide a forum to adjudicate these

         20  tickets.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay. I will

         22  actually find out what they think about it. And I

         23  assume, as you said, that they're part of the

         24  Administration and they probably support it, and if

         25  they do in this matter, I will. And if they don't,
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          2  I'll give it a fair review, and, again, out of

          3  respect to you and Council Member Yassky.

          4                 But, again, the system I would

          5  implement to delivering packages would be one that

          6  would obeys the laws of the City and the laws of the

          7  road, the laws that exist. But I will end my

          8  questioning on that. Thank you.

          9                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, we're just

         11  about finished with this witness. I believe Council

         12  Member Yassky had a last question or statement.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes, I just

         14  wanted to follow-up, because I very much appreciated

         15  the kind of the thoughtful remarks of Council Member

         16  Vallone, and in some ways, you know, it illustrates

         17  the dilemma as Council Member Liu was saying, you

         18  know, don't give people tickets when they're allowed

         19  to make deliveries. I shouldn't paraphrase, but that

         20  if the tickets are going to get reduced, and your

         21  point is, you know, we don't want people blocking

         22  the streets. It is true there is kind of a balance

         23  that needs to be struck. If I can put my two cents

         24  in, the Commissioner has done as good a job as can

         25  be done in trying to strike the balance here.
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          2                 The Administrative Code, I mean on

          3  its face, allows people to doublepark to make

          4  deliveries, and the problem with the Police

          5  Department is, or I think the point the Commissioner

          6  is making is, to put individual police officers who

          7  were on the street issuing tickets in the position

          8  of deciding are you making a delivery, are you doing

          9  it expeditiously, which is what the statute says, is

         10  a lot to ask of them, and maybe that's a decision

         11  that can be best made later. But I appreciated the

         12  thoughtful remarks, I just wanted to say, thank you.

         13                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Yes, thank you as

         14  well. And I do think and appreciate, again, I want

         15  to thank you, Council Member Yassky. Thank you,

         16  Council Member Weprin. We do believe we struck a

         17  balance, and that we got all of those interests at

         18  heart whenever we're adjudicating. And that's true

         19  regardless of whether or not you have this program,

         20  or you have people taking lots of time out of their

         21  day to come in and challenge those tickets before

         22  us.

         23                 We believe this is much more

         24  efficient. Certainly saves the businesses cost and

         25  saves the City cost of adjudicating as well. So,
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          2  thank you very much.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Can I just

          4  clarify one thing?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, Council

          6  Member Vallone.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: You reminded

          8  me of what the Police Commissioner actually said,

          9  because it was well over a year ago.

         10                 The debate he had was not with the

         11  philosophy of this, it was the definition of

         12  "expeditiously." Once you used that word I

         13  remembered. And you guys had a disagreement as to

         14  what expeditious was. So, if you've worked that out

         15  --

         16                 COMMISSIONER STARK: We have actually.

         17  As a matter of fact, I think that at that time

         18  expeditious in the Department of Transportation

         19  rules was defined as three hours, and they clarified

         20  the rule to make it 30 minutes. The program is now

         21  based on a 30-minute expeditious delivery solution

         22  and business model.

         23                 So, yes, we have absolutely addressed

         24  those concerns and that is why I certainly thank

         25  both DOT, the NYPD and others for making this
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          2  program the best that it can be, and I think they've

          3  again agreed that this strikes that proper balance.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

          6  Commissioner. As usual, always a pleasure to have

          7  you before this Committee.

          8                 COMMISSIONER STARK: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: And we look

         10  forward to Executive Budget hearings coming up.

         11                 The next witness is Ken Thorpe.

         12                 MR. THORPE: Good afternoon,

         13  Councilman Weprin, Yassky and others. And before the

         14  Department of Finance leaves, I want to thank Martha

         15  Stark for her testimony.

         16                 I'm with the New York Trucking and

         17  Delivery Association, and we have approximately 200,

         18  220 members enrolled in the stipulated fines

         19  programs that Martha Stark described.

         20                 Honestly, I would have liked the

         21  members who are going to be voting to listen,

         22  because we are in fact the largest single user of

         23  this program, and I want to congratulate Martha

         24  Stark and her team because they've created what

         25  amounts to the only solution that we have in place
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          2  today.

          3                 While some of the Councilmen have

          4  mentioned things that aren't right, like poor

          5  issuances by the Police Department, that never

          6  should be. We agree that exists. It's not going to

          7  change today.

          8                 Talk about traffic lanes, I'm

          9  preparing a report right now for Martha Stark and

         10  her group because they are on the rise. That's our

         11  opinion, based on the numbers that we see. That is

         12  not a Department of Finance function. That is an

         13  NYPD function. The traffic agents are not trained

         14  properly, they do not know the difference between a

         15  doubleparking ticket and a traffic lane ticket.

         16                 There are many issues that were

         17  raised today, and each and every negative issue that

         18  I've heard aren't relative to this program, they're
         19  not germane, they're germane to take at issuance.

         20                 This program is about, well, this is

         21  the type of ticket issuance we have today, and what

         22  is the best way to handle it. And I think the

         23  Department of Finance, at least from my opinion, and

         24  from my serving over 200 companies that are

         25  currently using it, and hopefully we'll have as many
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          2  as 300, which is our current membership. Some of our

          3  members are still using ticket brokers and attorneys

          4  and they are paying out the nose but they're under

          5  contract. So, until such time that they can convert,

          6  they cannot. And we've processed probably about

          7  eight- to ten-million dollars in fines just through

          8  our office, paid out to the Department of Finance in

          9  reduced amounts.

         10                 The program is not a given. And what

         11  I mean is, it's not replacing money that would

         12  ordinarily be in the budget, because regardless,

         13  when this program wasn't there, these tickets were

         14  adjudicated by attorneys, ticket brokers, and so

         15  forth. And you're getting the same money basically.

         16                 The difference is you're spending

         17  less to get it and you're costing my members in the

         18  trucking business in large less for doing that.

         19                 Trucking is not the enemy, and I hear

         20  so many times people talking about trucking. Without

         21  trucking, we don't get our goods, our services,

         22  whether it's at home, in our office or anywhere

         23  else. It is a fact of life that our infrastructure

         24  here in the City is the problem. It is not the

         25  trucking companies. But can we help manage it
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          2  better? Should we get parking permits, certain

          3  parking placards off the street and make room?

          4  Absolutely. Are there a variety of different things,

          5  better agent enforcement, you know, education.

          6                 In fact, you know, I recently wrote

          7  to Commissioner Kelly trying to create a forum for

          8  giving feedback to the NYPD from companies like ours

          9  who has a vast amount of knowledge and experience

         10  with daily tickets that are issued, and what the

         11  problems with them are, where the problems are, and

         12  we're hoping to get a positive response from the

         13  Commissioner.

         14                 But as far as this program is

         15  concerned, you are not changing the amount of money

         16  the City will and will not make. But what you are

         17  doing, barring any other solutions which do not

         18  exist today, technology-wise or otherwise, this is

         19  the best solution that is available today. Without

         20  it, again, so I think it was David Yassky that

         21  mentioned ticket brokers, the reason we started this

         22  Association was because of ticket brokers.

         23                 My brother happened to be in the

         24  trucking business, and I went and filled in for him

         25  one day when his partner was sick, and it's all
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          2  these guys were talking about. And I said, well,

          3  what do you do about it? Well, we go to the

          4  attorney. How much is that? Fifty percent of what he

          5  saved us. It was ridiculous. And I had some prior

          6  parking violations experience, and computer

          7  experience, and I came down and I found they were

          8  already working on something that I was trying to

          9  get done. It was great.

         10                 The bottom line is I fully support

         11  this. And those of you who have reservations, what I

         12  can say to you is I hear those reservations, and

         13  from the trucking side, I can't disagree with them.

         14  You do not have a better solution today, and by the

         15  time you do, without this program too many companies

         16  get hurt that do not need to get hurt.

         17                 Plus, the City is going into a

         18  situation now where staffing is everything. Budgets

         19  are going to be crucified in every agency. The

         20  Department of Finance has reduced costs. If this

         21  program were not there today, the Department of

         22  Finance would have to hire a bevy of new attorneys,

         23  just to adjudicate the tickets manually.

         24                 So, again, I give my full support to

         25  the Department of Finance and the program and on
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          2  behalf of over 200 companies that we have enrolled

          3  in these programs, representing thousands of

          4  vehicles, I ask you to approve the bill.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Thorpe. I just want to announce for the record that

          7  we've been joined by Council Member Helen Sears, who

          8  has a hearing she is chairing across the street, so

          9  she has to go across. And we've also been joined by

         10  Council Member Bill DeBlasio. And Council Member

         11  Leroy Comrie.

         12                 MR. THORPE: Well, just in summary,

         13  I'm pretty much finished. Just in summary, I want to

         14  say that I support this, and unless anybody has any

         15  questions? I left the meeting today with the NYPD,

         16  by the way, their NEXUS (phonetic) program, it's a

         17  counter-terrorism program, and just to let you know,

         18  our members are coming on board this

         19  counter-terrorism program in droves. RCN, I just

         20  came from them today. We put on 70 new people. This

         21  is all designed towards helping the City of New York

         22  fight terrorism. And the reason I bring this up

         23  today, is to let you know the kind of people you're

         24  dealing with out there. These are people that

         25  deliver to you, to the Council, the paper you're
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          2  writing on today. I ask you to support this bill.

          3  Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Thorpe.

          6                 I believe Council Member Gerson has a

          7  question.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes, thank

          9  you, Mr. Chair.

         10                 Mr. Thorpe, good morning.

         11                 MR. THORPE: Good morning, Councilman.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you. And

         13  I'm sure all my colleagues share the same sentiments

         14  on behalf of the people of Lower Manhattan, and I

         15  represent, thank you for your participation in that

         16  counter-terrorism program, and thank your industry.

         17                 Just kind of one broad question,

         18  related but also broader, related to the bill before

         19  us, going to the broader issue of, you know, traffic

         20  management and truck management, in particular. And

         21  you mentioned there are other things you can do in

         22  order to enforcing rules and regulations. But let me

         23  ask you this, from your perspective, can we as a

         24  City develop a truck delivery management system in,

         25  you know, key areas that will involve old
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          2  technology, new technology, range of measures,

          3  designated parking time spots, staggered times,

          4  off-hour deliveries, things of that nature? Is there

          5  something we can work together, a government and an

          6  industry, to accomplish?

          7                 MR. THORPE: Absolutely.

          8                 I mean, the fact of the matter is

          9  that we have an infrastructure problem. There is no

         10  question about that. We're not going to start

         11  tearing up the streets of New York and knocking down

         12  buildings to make room for parking. It's just not a

         13  reality. There are things, and I've heard so many

         14  things talked about in part, a little bit here, a

         15  little bit there, by various public officials, never

         16  a concise plan. And one of the things, for example,

         17  I've heard people say, well, we should build a rail.

         18  Oh, yeah, okay, we'll do that one day. Then in the

         19  meantime, even if you did rail the stuff into New

         20  York City, you still have trucks deliver to the

         21  places, unless you can have like Jetson-styled

         22  stuff.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And I was also

         24  interested in something a little more short-term.

         25                 MR. THORPE: Exactly, in our lifetime.
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          2  And one of the things that could be done is

          3  nighttime delivery. But not the way --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. I've

          5  been arguing that in the congestion pricing debate

          6  for a long time.

          7                 MR. THORPE: Likewise. Likewise. That

          8  is our position.
          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. I'm happy

         10  to hear that.

         11                 MR. THORPE: The problem with that is

         12  that they say it's easy to say, hey, deliver at

         13  night, but unless the businesses have the ability to

         14  receive the goods at night. I mean, what makes

         15  somebody to have the ability? Quite frankly, money.

         16  And why money? Well, maybe a business isn't open all

         17  night. The Staples delivery of office supplies, the

         18  close at 5:00. You want somebody to be there to

         19  receive those goods, some facility.

         20                 Restaurants. You can't be delivering

         21  goods into a restaurant during prime time, if their

         22  prime is between 8:00 and 10:00 at night or

         23  something like that. The bottom line is, though,

         24  most people will do pretty much anything if the

         25  money involved, if there is some break.
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          2                 Now, with commercial businesses,

          3  retail outlets and so forth, to be able to receive

          4  goods at night, there would have to be some type of

          5  tax break or other type of consideration.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. That

          7  was another one of my proposals, the tax break. Do

          8  it with the carrot rather than the stick and

          9  encourage businesses to do it.

         10                 MR. THORPE: The trucking companies

         11  probably in time would get used to it and wouldn't

         12  mind doing it.

         13                 Maybe, like I said in my comments on

         14  the congestion bill, how about if you gave a tax

         15  incentive to the companies to receive, or some type

         16  of benefit, you gave some type of either fuel

         17  discounts to the company, credits for delivering at

         18  night, and/or, how about instead of congestion

         19  pricing, how about no tolls? No toll. I don't care

         20  what way you come into the City, if you come in

         21  after whatever time, you know, no toll. We sacrifice

         22  a few dollars, but guess what? Trucking companies

         23  are being killed today. The cost of fuel. Some

         24  trucking companies are going out of business,

         25  especially the little guys, folks, for those in
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          2  small business. The small guys, having a real tough

          3  time. They come into the City and they're paying

          4  unGodly prices for diesel, they gotta pay their

          5  workers. Now they get a couple of parking tickets

          6  forget about it, the day is done.

          7                 All right, the larger companies can

          8  absorb it for awhile, not over a long period of

          9  time. And my point is this: There are many things

         10  that we can do, and I have begged certain of our

         11  representatives to look at various issues like

         12  these, and I've been more than happy to talk to

         13  anybody that is looking to get behind something that

         14  can be done that makes sense.

         15                 But, again, I have to preface this

         16  with, I personally am tired of trucking being the

         17  villain, it is not. It's a necessary business. On

         18  the other hand, I work with the Department of

         19  Finance every day in order to get my company's

         20  tickets adjudicated. We also do fleet management,

         21  among other things. And I've got to tell you, not

         22  everything is perfect. We argue about this. We do,

         23  the Department of Finance and I. It's always going

         24  to be the case, I'm on one side, they're on the

         25  other. But they --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: They know where

          3  you live, too.

          4                 MR. THORPE: I'm sorry? What was that?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: I'm sorry. I'm

          6  sorry for the outburst.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: He said they know

          8  where you live, too.

          9                 MR. THORPE: Yes, they do.

         10                 The fact of the matter is, though,

         11  while the program itself could probably use some

         12  tweaking, it's the best thing around right now.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And just to

         14  follow-up, I'm sure my Chair will indulge me.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I usually do.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes, you do.

         17  But especially now, in view of our recent dialogue.

         18  Of course you do, we're lucky to have David Weprin

         19  as Chair of our Finance Committee.

         20                 MR. THORPE: Agreed. He looked right

         21  at me.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: There you go.

         23                 In our district, and probably in

         24  other parts of the City, we have a phenomenon where

         25  we have produce transfer points, if you will,
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          2  wholesale markets, which are probably technically

          3  illegal under the Land Use Code, many of them. But

          4  that's not yours, that's a different issue.

          5                 MR. THORPE: Like the Hunts Point

          6  Markets overall?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: We have like

          8  smaller versions of that.

          9                 MR. THORPE: Okay.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And where you

         11  have large trucks tumbling into residential streets,

         12  talking about Chinatown, Lower East Side, East SoHo,

         13  and they transfer their produce from the large

         14  trucks to the warehouses, and eventually they're

         15  reloaded.

         16                 MR. THORPE: I encouraged a lot of my

         17  member companies to do just that. Just that.

         18  Especially the ones that come from out-of-state, and

         19  they come in with large haulers and so forth, I've

         20  always told them, you bring a couple of smaller

         21  vans, smaller trucks, bring them in, it's much

         22  easier to move around the City.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So my

         24  question, would it make sense as a City if somehow

         25  we worked with industry to develop satellite
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          2  transfer locations for those businesses which for

          3  one reason or another it's not practical, they don't

          4  use Hunts Point, rather than these ad hoc locations

          5  that are existing in spots that aren't really

          6  appropriate because they're residential, they're

          7  under where people live, so trucks are coming in at

          8  four, five in the morning? Or do you have any other

          9  thoughts as to how to deal with that problem, which

         10  is brewing?

         11                 MR. THORPE: Well, that would work

         12  with certain industries and not others. It really

         13  depends on the type of products being brought in

         14  from where. The concentration of that product type.

         15  Different products, different types of handling,

         16  different types of facilities, whether they are cold

         17  food, or, you know, perishable items, or whether

         18  they're bricks, you know what I mean?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, I'll

         20  tell you what, because I don't want to -- because

         21  now we are probably deviating a little bit from this

         22  legislation.

         23                 MR. THORPE: Yes, there are many --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: -- Could we

         25  follow-up with a conversation on this issue?
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          2                 MR. THORPE: Absolutely.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. And, so,

          4  I'll certainly be in touch. And I do thank you, Mr.

          5  Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          7                 Any other questions for this witness?

          8                 Seeing none, thank you very much, Mr.

          9  Thorpe.

         10                 MR. THORPE: I thank you all.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Anybody else like

         12  to testify?

         13                 Council Member Reyna.

         14                 Could you stay one minute, Mr.

         15  Thorpe?

         16                 Could you stay one minute?

         17                 MR. THORPE: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm sorry. I

         19  didn't mean to have a delayed reaction here.

         20                 MR. THORPE: That's all right. It's

         21  quite all right. I do it all the time.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm just

         23  itching to ask, I'm not too sure if this plays any

         24  role in this program that has been running, but

         25  considering that now we're venturing into turning it
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          2  into law --

          3                 MR. THORPE: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: -- So that it

          5  can continue to exist, the issue of Department of

          6  Transportation signage. Now, you have certain areas

          7  that are no parking except trucks, and between hours

          8  for delivery, and then you have certain areas that

          9  don't.

         10                 MR. THORPE: And in those lots a lot

         11  of times you have placard vehicles parking where our

         12  trucks are supposed to be.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Absolutely.

         14  Absolutely.

         15                 And, so, now that there is this

         16  program, and it will become law, is there a need for

         17  those types of signage to allow trucks that normally

         18  you don't see trucks parking, and is being used for

         19  other purposes?

         20                 MR. THORPE: Absolutely. And the

         21  reason that is, is because --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: "absolutely"

         23  yes? You need the signage?

         24                 MR. THORPE: Absolutely, yes. We still

         25  need that. Absolutely, and I'll tell you why.
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          2                 To give you an example, the thing

          3  Martha Stark, the thing we fight mostly about is

          4  Midtown, because Midtown, the discounts are very

          5  small in Midtown. Personally I think Midtown should

          6  not be treated separately than any other area. And

          7  we are lobbying with them to eventually change that.

          8                 I think that has nothing to do with

          9  whether this bill should be passed or not, but it's

         10  something that they should be pressured to do in

         11  time. But it's not just them, it's the Department of

         12  Transportation, there's a variety of other issues

         13  involved. But that said, "no stopping," "no parking

         14  except truck unloading" is absolutely necessary,

         15  especially Midtown, because we get killed in

         16  Midtown. First of all, there's nowhere to park. And

         17  where there is, is placards. And unfortunately, even

         18  in those spots reserved for us, often there is

         19  placards.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Mm-hmm.

         21                 MR. THORPE: So, you hear that word

         22  constantly lately. We've known this for a long time

         23  before it made the headlines.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So, we maintain

         25  a status quo as far as signage is concerned?
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          2                 MR. THORPE: Could use some more of it

          3  in Midtown.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And, so, you

          5  would say that in support of this program, now

          6  constituting into law, that an assessment of the

          7  truck signage should be part of this particular

          8  program in order for it to have more benefit?

          9                 MR. THORPE: I don't know that it

         10  should be linked to it directly, but I think it's an

         11  issue that should be looked at.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Overall?

         13                 MR. THORPE: Overall, yes. I think

         14  there is insufficient truck unloading in high

         15  population areas, and unfortunately, my fear would

         16  be that even if you gave us more spots to park,

         17  they'd be filled with other vehicles anyway.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Mm-hmm.

         19                 MR. THORPE: But at least they'd be

         20  there.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         24  Brewer and Council Member Oddo can thank Council

         25  Member Reyna for us still meeting, because I was
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          2  about to adjourn this meeting and Council Member

          3  Reyna had one last question, and that one last

          4  question lasted about ten minutes, so we managed to

          5  welcome Council Member Oddo and Council Member

          6  Brewer.

          7                 Other than that, we are now

          8  adjourned.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 11:46 a.m.)
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